

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

GAMING CONTROL BOARD

* * * * *

PUBLIC MEETING

* * * * *

BEFORE: MEMBERS OF THE BOARD:

DAVID M. BARASCH, CHAIRMAN

Obra S. Kernodle, IV

Sean Logan

T. Mark Mustio

Merritt C. Reitzel

Dante Santoni, Jr.

Denise J. Smyler

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS/DESIGNEES IN ATTENDANCE:

Jennifer Langan, Esquire, Designee,

Department of Treasury

Christin Heidingsfelder, Designee,

Department of Revenue

HEARING: Wednesday, March 11, 2020, 10:12 a.m.

LOCATION: Strawberry Square Complex, Second Floor

Harrisburg, PA 17101

Reporter: Derek Richmond

Any reproduction of this transcript is prohibited
without authorization by the certifying agency.

A P P E A R A N C E S

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

PA GAMING CONTROL BOARD EXECUTIVE STAFF WHO APPEARED
BEFORE THE BOARD:

- DENISE MILLER-TSHUDY, Senior Chief Counsel
- R. DOUGLAS SHERMAN, Chief Counsel
- STEVE COOK, Deputy Chief Counsel
- CHAD ZIMMERMANN, Assistant Chief Counsel
- DANETTE BIXLER-GEORGE, Director of Human Resources
- SUSAN HENSEL, Director, Bureau of Licensing

OFFICE OF ENFORCEMENT COUNSEL:

- CYRUS PITRE, Chief Enforcement Counsel
- DUSTIN MILLER, Deputy Enforcement Counsel
- BRADLEY MCALLISTER, Assistant Enforcement Counsel
- ASHLEY GABRIELLE, Assistant Enforcement Counsel
- THOMAS MONAGHAN, Assistant Enforcement Counsel
- SARAH KOLESAR, Assistant Enforcement Counsel

OTHER ATTENDEES FOR MEETING AND/OR PUBLIC HEARINGS:

- Christopher Reed, Esquire, CHR Corp. d/b/a Rutter's
- Sarah Dotzel, Esquire, CHR Corp. d/b/a Rutter's
- Joseph DeSimone

I N D E X

1		
2		
3	OPENING REMARKS	
4	By Chairman	4 - 5
5	PRESENTATION	
6	By Ms. Bixler-George	6 - 9
7	By Attorney Sherman	9
8	By Attorney Zimmermann	9 - 12
9	By Attorney Miller-Tshudy	12 - 16
10	DISCUSSION AMONG PARTIES	16 - 17
11	By Attorney Sherman	17 - 23
12	PRESENTATION	
13	By Attorney Cook	23 - 28
14	TESTIMONY	
15	By Mr. DeSimone	28 - 31
16	PRESENTATION	
17	By Attorney Cook	32 - 42
18	By Ms. Hensel	43 - 59
19	By Attorney Pitre	59 - 60
20	By Attorney Gabrielle	61 - 66
21	By Attorney Monaghan	67 - 69
22	By Attorney Miller	69
23	By Attorney McAllister	69 - 70
24	By Attorney Miller	71
25	DISCUSSION AMONG PARTIES	71

P R O C E E D I N G S

CHAIRMAN: Good morning, everyone.

I'm David Barasch, Chairman of the Pennsylvania Gaming Control Board. As always I'm asking everyone to please turn off the ringers on your cell phones and other devices.

Joining us today is going to be Jen Langan, representing Joseph Torsella the State Treasurer, and Christin Heidingsfelder, representing Secretary of Revenue, Dan Hassell. Thank you for coming.

A quorum of the Board being present, first order of business is the Pledge of Allegiance.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE RECITED

CHAIRMAN: By way of announcements the Board held an Executive Session yesterday, Tuesday, March 10th -.

(WHEREUPON THERE WAS A BRIEF INTERRUPTION IN THE PROCEEDINGS.)

CHAIRMAN: By way of announcements the Board held an Executive Session yesterday, Tuesday - there we go, March 10th, to discuss personnel matters

1 and conduct quasi-judicial deliberations related to
2 matters coming before the Board.

3 First order of business, we have a
4 public hearing scheduled today relating, to CHR
5 Corporation's, doing business as Rutter's, a motion to
6 consider new VGT locations. As the Board understands
7 it, there are two underlying issues raised in this
8 matter we must answer before we can actually decide on
9 the licensure of these two establishments.

10 First, whether a new truck stop must
11 be operational before the Board can consider an
12 application.

13 And second, whether the Board can rely
14 entirely on diesel sale projections when considering a
15 truck stop - whether the truck stop will sell at least
16 50,000 gallons of diesel per month in the - in the
17 year following their opening - in the year that
18 immediately follows their opening, as required by the
19 Act.

20 We will hear from two parties today on
21 - on those issues and then later at a later meeting we
22 will take up the two applications at issue once we
23 have resolved the policy and procedural questions
24 presented. That being said, can we have the
25 representative come forward, please?

1 PERSONAL HEARING HELD

2 CHAIRMAN: Next I'd like consideration
3 for the motion to approve the minutes and transcripts
4 of the January 15th meeting.

5 MR. LOGAN: Mr. Chairman, I move that
6 the Board approve the minutes and transcripts of the
7 January - transcript of the January 15th, 2020,
8 meeting.

9 MR. MUSTIO: Second.

10 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

11 AYES RESPOND

12 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

13 The motion's adopted.

14 Danette?

15 MS. BIXLER-GEORGE: Good morning,
16 Chairman, Board Members.

17 The Office of Human Resources has two
18 motions for your consideration today relative to the
19 hiring of three individuals and the ratification of
20 hiring of one individual per the authority granted to
21 the Personnel Committee for vacancies at Wind Creek
22 Casino.

23 The first of the three hires is
24 Justina Beard who has been - Beard (corrects
25 pronunciation), I'm sorry, who has been selected as a

1 Casino Compliance Examiner in the Bureau of Gaming
2 Operations. She has completed the interview process,
3 background investigations and drug screening and is
4 recommended for hire by Paul Resch, Bureau Director
5 for Gaming Operations.

6 Second is Reginald Dudley, also having
7 been - having been selected for a Casino Compliance
8 Examiner in the Bureau of Gaming Operations. He, too,
9 has completed the interview process, background
10 investigation, drug screening and is also recommended
11 for hire by Paul Resch, Bureau Director of Gaming
12 Operations.

13 Finally is Jesse - Jesse Bompard, who
14 has been selected as a Licensing Analyst for the
15 Gaming Service Provider Unit in the Bureau of
16 Licensing. He has completed the interview process,
17 background investigation and drug screening and is
18 recommended for hire by Susan Hensel, Bureau Director
19 of Licensing.

20 Unless you have any questions, I ask
21 that the Board consider a motion to approve these
22 hirings as indicated.

23 CHAIRMAN: Any questions or comments
24 from the Board?

25 Hearing none, may I have a motion?

1 MR. MUSTIO: Mr. Chairman, I move that
2 the Board approve the applicants for hire as proposed
3 by the Human Resources Director.

4 MS. REITZEL: Second.

5 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

6 AYES RESPOND

7 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

8 The motion's adopted.

9 MS. BIXLER-GEORGE: The second motion
10 seeks to ratify the hiring of Chad Gerber, Casino
11 Compliance Representative. His hiring was approved by
12 the Personnel Committee on March 4th for a hire at
13 Wind Creek Casino. This action is consistent with the
14 Board Order of February 12th, 2020, delegating
15 authority to the Board's Personnel Committee to
16 approve hiring of individuals between Board meetings
17 to ensure adequate staffing at Wind Creek Casino.

18 Per that same Order, finalization of
19 any hires between Board meetings is contingent upon
20 the Board ratifying the Personnel Committee's action.

21 As such I ask that you consider a
22 motion ratifying the hire of Mr. Gerber.

23 CHAIRMAN: Any questions or comments
24 from the Board?

25 Hearing none, may I have a motion?

1 MR. MUSTIO: Mr. Chairman, I move that
2 the Board ratify the hiring of Chad Gerber, as
3 described by the Human Resources Director.

4 MS. REITZEL: Second.

5 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

6 AYES RESPOND

7 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

8 The motion's adopted.

9 MS. BIXLER-GEORGE: Thank you.

10 CHAIRMAN: Doug Sherman, Chief
11 Counsel.

12 ATTORNEY SHERMAN: Good morning,
13 Chairman and members of the Board.

14 Our first Agenda items relate to a
15 proposed Regulation and a Statement of Policy which
16 Assistant Chief Counsel Chad Zimmermann is here to
17 present.

18 ATTORNEY ZIMMERMANN: Good morning,
19 Commissioners.

20 First matter on your Agenda is
21 Proposed Regulation #125-230. This is a proposed rule
22 making for video gaming terminals. This is a
23 comprehensive set of Regulations relating to the play
24 and offering of video gaming terminals in the
25 Commonwealth.

1 This set of Regulations encompasses
2 all aspects of video gaming terminal games, including
3 but not limited to the general provisions, licensure,
4 internal controls, auditing and the commencement of
5 operations in the establishment of truck-stop
6 establishments.

7 This set of Regulations was largely
8 based upon the temporary Regulations that were adopted
9 by the Board previously, with tweaks made in certain
10 areas to address areas of need or to clarify certain
11 provisions that needed amendments.

12 I'm able to answer any questions you
13 have on this set of Regulations. If not, I request a
14 motion to approve Proposed Regulation 125-230.

15 CHAIRMAN: Thank you.

16 Any questions or comments from the
17 Board on this matter?

18 Hearing none, may I have a motion?

19 MS. REITZEL: Mr. Chairman, I move
20 that the Board adopt Proposed Regulation 125-230
21 regarding video gaming terminals as described by the
22 Office of Chief Counsel (OCC) - oh, by the Chief
23 Counsel.

24 MR. SANTONI: Second.

25 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

1 AYES RESPOND

2 CHAIRMAN: All opposed? The motion's
3 adopted.

4 ATTORNEY ZIMMERMANN: The next matter
5 is a Statement of Policy #125-231, the Super 4
6 Progressive Blackjack Wager. This wager is already
7 approved by the Board as an acceptable side wager in
8 Blackjack. However the Manufacturer of the game has
9 developed new progressive technology that allows them
10 to have more progressive options available to licensed
11 facilities to choose from in order to offer larger
12 progressive payouts, given that the pay tables for the
13 wager needed to be adjusted to accommodate the
14 traditional progressive options that were available.

15 This Statement Policy would adopt it
16 as drafted and this would supersede the previously-
17 adopted version, which updates the pay tables.

18 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from
19 the Board?

20 Hearing none, may I have a motion?

21 MR. SANTONI: Mr. Chairman, I move
22 that the Board adopt Statement Policy #125-231
23 regarding Super 4 Progressive Blackjack wager as
24 described by the OCC.

25 MS. SMYLER: Second.

1 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

2 AYES RESPOND

3 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

4 The motion's adopted.

5 ATTORNEY ZIMMERMANN: Thank you.

6 CHAIRMAN: Thank you.

7 ATTORNEY SHERMAN: Next we have
8 consideration for Local Law-Enforcement Grant
9 Applications, which Assistant Chief Counsel Denise
10 Miller-Tshudy is here to present.

11 ATTORNEY MILLER-TSHUDY: Good morning.

12 CHAIRMAN: Good morning.

13 ATTORNEY MILLER-TSHUDY: As the Board
14 knows, the Board has been given an appropriation of
15 two million dollars towards the award of Grants to
16 local law-enforcement agencies for the investigative
17 and - well, investigative in violations of enforcement
18 laws relating to unlawful gambling.

19 I have four applications for you.
20 They total approximately \$740,000.

21 The first Grant before you is Bensalem
22 Township Police Department. They're asking for a
23 Grant of \$221,000 and \$25. If awarded, this will be
24 their second Grant and they're focusing on three
25 phases. The first being educational, both with

1 business people and high school students and the
2 community at large. The second being a
3 public-information phase, which will include
4 production of a PSA that will run on the local cable
5 station and also bus drops. And of course the third
6 phase will be the actual enforcement of any
7 violations.

8 They meet the Guidelines, the Board's
9 Guidelines for Local Law-Enforcement Grants. If you
10 have any questions, I'm happy to answer it, otherwise
11 it's ready for a motion.

12 CHAIRMAN: Thank you.

13 Any questions or comments from the
14 Board?

15 Hearing none, may I have a motion?

16 MS. SMYLER: Mr. Chairman, I move that
17 the Board approve the Local Law-Enforcement Grant
18 Application for the Bensalem Township Police
19 Department as described by the OCC.

20 MR. KERNODLE: Second.

21 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

22 AYES RESPOND

23 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

24 The motion is adopted.

25 ATTORNEY MILLER-TSHUDY: The second

1 Grant that is before you is from the Cumberland County
2 District Attorney's Office. They are asking for
3 \$154,336. If awarded, this will be the first Grant
4 and they're seeking funding for salaries and benefits,
5 capital equipment and training events. They would
6 also have a limited cost for their closing audit.

7 They meet all of the Guidelines that
8 the Board has set in place. If you have any
9 questions, I'd be happy to answer them. If not, I'd
10 ask for a motion to approve it.

11 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from
12 the Board?

13 Hearing none, may I have motion?

14 MR. KERNODLE: Mr. Chairman, I move
15 that the Board approve the Local Law-Enforcement Grant
16 Applicant from Cumberland County District Attorney's
17 Office as described by the OCC.

18 MR. LOGAN: Second.

19 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

20 AYES RESPOND

21 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

22 The motion's adopted.

23 ATTORNEY MILLER-TSHUDY: Okay.

24 The third Grant that I have for you is
25 from the Delaware County District Attorney's Office.

1 They are asking for \$250,000. If awarded, this would
2 be their sixth Grant. They continue to fund and
3 support its Gaming Task Force specifically through
4 salaries, training and enforcement.

5 Again, they do meet the Board's
6 Guidelines and it's ready for a motion, if you have
7 any questions for me.

8 CHAIRMAN: Questions or the comments
9 from the Board?

10 Hearing none, may I have a motion?

11 MR. LOGAN: Mr. Chairman, I move that
12 the Board approve the Local Law-Enforcement Grant
13 Application for the Delaware County District
14 Attorney's Office as described by the OCC.

15 MR. MUSTIO: Second.

16 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

17 AYES RESPOND

18 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

19 The motion's adopted.

20 ATTORNEY MILLER-TSHUDY: The final
21 Grant that I have before you is the Lackawanna County
22 District Attorney's Office and Dunmore Police
23 Department as co-applicants. The co-applicants are
24 requesting \$114,802. If awarded, this will be their
25 second Grant. And they are looking to finalize an

1 ongoing investigation and are requesting funds to pay
2 for personnel costs, equipment, expert witness fees
3 and public education.

4 CHAIRMAN: Question -.

5 ATTORNEY MILLER-TSHUDY: Oh, I'm
6 sorry. Go ahead.

7 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from
8 the Board?

9 Hearing none, may I have a motion?

10 MR. MUSTIO: Mr. Chairman, I move that
11 the Board approve the joint Local Law-Enforcement
12 Grant Application for the Lackawanna County District
13 Attorney's Office and Dunmore Police Department as
14 described by the OCC.

15 MS. REITZEL: Second.

16 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

17 AYES RESPOND

18 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

19 The motion's adopted.

20 ATTORNEY MILLER-TSHUDY: Thank you.

21 CHAIRMAN: At this time I'd like to
22 just note on the public record that the Board has been
23 provided an allocation of two million dollars for
24 Local Enforcement Grants. And after the approval of
25 the Grants that we did today, there's still \$1.26

1 million remaining that could be allocated.

2 Given the remaining funds, I will now
3 entertain a motion to reopen the Grant Application
4 period for any law-enforcement agencies to apply for
5 Grants to investigate violations of enforcement laws
6 relating to unlawful gambling in the Commonwealth
7 pursuant to the Guidelines that we previously posted
8 on the web - on the Board's website.

9 Is there such a motion?

10 MS. SMYLER: Mr. Chairman, I move that
11 the Board reopen the Local Law-Enforcement Grant
12 Application period for any law-enforcement agencies
13 that wish to apply for Grants to investigate
14 violations of and enforce laws relating to unlawful
15 gambling as described by the OCC.

16 MR. KERNODLE: Second.

17 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

18 AYES RESPOND

19 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

20 The motion's adopted.

21 ATTORNEY SHERMAN: Next we have four
22 petitions before the Board for your consideration.
23 Each will be decided based upon the documentary record
24 by agreement of the parties. In each of the matters
25 the Board has, in advance to this meeting, been

1 provided with all the documents filed prior to today.

2 The first matter is Washington
3 Trotting Association's Petition for Approval of an
4 Amended and Restated Sports Wagering Shared-Service
5 Agreement. Washington Trotting is the Category 1 Slot
6 Machine Licensee and operates as the Meadows Racetrack
7 and Casino in Washington County.

8 On October 2nd, 2019, the Board
9 approved the Sports Wagering Shared-Service Agreement
10 between WTA and Penn Sports Interactive, both of whom
11 are subsidiaries of Penn National Gaming.

12 The original Shared-Service Agreement
13 allowed parties to exchange services related to WTA's
14 land based sports-wagering operation. Under the
15 amended and restated agreement, Penn Sports
16 Interactive will receive larger percentage of net
17 revenue as a result of Penn Sports Interactive taking
18 a more active role in the operation of the Meadows
19 Sportsbook. This modification, to be clear, has no
20 fiscal impact to the Commonwealth.

21 WTA asserts that the amended agreement
22 will reduce the number of intercompany transfers
23 without materially impacting the economics of the
24 activity. These expenses include but are not limited
25 to providing sports-wagering kiosks, betting terminals

1 as well as third-party data fees.

2 The OCC has no objection to the relief
3 requested subject to conditions outlined in their
4 Answer. And additionally OEC has no objection to the
5 request for confidentiality filed in the matter. And
6 it's now ready for the Board's motion.

7 CHAIRMAN: Okay. Thanks, Doug.

8 Questions or comments from the Board?

9 Hearing none, may I have a motion?

10 MR. SANTONI: Mr. Chairman, I move
11 that the Board grant Washington Trotting Association,
12 LLC's Petition for Approval of an Amended and Restated
13 Sports Wagering Shared-Services Agreement with Penn
14 Sports Interactive, LLC as described by the OCC. I
15 further move that the Petitioner's Motion for
16 Confidentiality be granted.

17 MS. SMYLER: Second.

18 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

19 AYES RESPOND

20 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

21 The motion's adopted.

22 ATTORNEY SHERMAN: Next before the
23 Board is Mountainview Thoroughbred Racing
24 Association's Petition for Approval of the Amended and
25 Restated Sports Wagering Shared-Service Agreement that

1 they had with Penn Sports Interactive. Mountainview,
2 of course, is a Category 1 Slot Machine Licensee,
3 doing business as Hollywood Casino and Penn National
4 Racetrack. The requested modification is identical to
5 that in the case of Washington Trotting Association,
6 another Penn National holding.

7 The OEC has no objection to the relief
8 requested, subject to conditions outlined in its
9 Answer. And they also had no objection to the request
10 for confidentiality. This matter is now ready for the
11 Board's approval.

12 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from
13 the Board?

14 Hearing none, may I have a motion?

15 MS. SMYLER: Mr. Chairman, I move that
16 the Board grant Mountainview Thoroughbred Racing
17 Association, LLC's Petition for Approval of the
18 Amended and Restated Sports Wagering Shared-Services
19 Agreement with Penn Sports Interactive, LLC as
20 described by the OCC. I further move that the
21 Petitioner's Motion for Confidentiality be granted.

22 MR. KERNODLE: Second.

23 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

24 AYES RESPOND

25 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

1 The motion's adopted.

2 ATTORNEY SHERMAN: The third petition
3 before the Board pertains to Brenda Rosado's request
4 for early reapplication for a Gaming Employee
5 Occupation Permit.

6 In October of 2016 Ms. Rosado
7 submitted an application seeking a renewal of her
8 Gaming Employee Occupation Permit to work as a Dealer
9 at Sands Bethlehem. In December of 2016 the OEC
10 issued a Notice recommending a denial of that
11 application, based on Ms. Rosado's failure to provide
12 verification that she filed her 2013 federal taxes.
13 Ms. Rosado never responded to OEC and then in April of
14 2017 the Board issued an Order denying her the
15 reapplication.

16 On January 3rd of this year Ms. Rosado
17 filed her petition requesting that the Board grant her
18 authority to submit another application for an
19 Employee Permit. As the Board authorizing her to do
20 so, she would have to wait five years in order to
21 reapply.

22 The Board's Bureau of Investigation
23 and Enforcement (BIE) has contacted Ms. Rosado and
24 requested that she provide her tax transcripts from
25 2016 to 2018. She has done so, as well as providing

1 missing information pertaining to the 2018 tax year.
2 As a result, OEC no longer has an objection to her
3 request and is ready for the Board's consideration to
4 allow her to reapply early.

5 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from
6 the Board?

7 Hearing none, may I have a motion?

8 MR. KERNODLE: Mr. Chairman, I move
9 the Board grants Brenda Rosado's Petition for Early
10 Reapplication for a Gaming Employee Occupation Permit
11 described by the OCC.

12 MR. LOGAN: Second.

13 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

14 AYES RESPOND

15 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

16 The motion's adopted.

17 ATTORNEY SHERMAN: The final petition
18 before the Board pertains to the OEC's request to have
19 Howard Dingler's Gaming Employee Occupation Permit
20 revoked. The uncontested facts of the matter are that
21 on three separate occasions, in May of 2019, Mr.
22 Dingler, while employed as a Security Officer at
23 SugarHouse Casino, stole credits left on slot machines
24 and cashed them out. Mr. Dingler was terminated from
25 his employment at SugarHouse, but no criminal charges

1 were filed.

2 In July of 2019 the OEC filed a
3 Revocation Complaint. Mr. Dingler initially requested
4 a hearing on the Complaint, but subsequently signed a
5 Waiver, thereby foregoing his right to a hearing and
6 allowing the Board to decide the matter based upon the
7 documents filed of record. The matter is now closed
8 and is ready for the Board's consideration and motion
9 to revoke.

10 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from
11 the Board?

12 Hearing none, may I have a motion?

13 MR. LOGAN: Mr. Chairman, I move that
14 the Board revoke Howard Dingler's Gaming Employee
15 Occupation Permit for the conduct described by the
16 OCC.

17 MR. MUSTIO: Second.

18 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

19 AYES RESPOND

20 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

21 The motion's adopted.

22 ATTORNEY SHERMAN: Next we have
23 Withdrawals and Surrenders, as well as Reports and
24 Recommendations by Deputy Chief Counsel Steve Cook.

25 ATTORNEY COOK: Good morning.

1 The Board received several imposed -
2 petitions to withdraw the application and surrender
3 credentials of the following individuals and entities:
4 John Finamore; Christopher Peterson; Timothy Wilmott;
5 Jarden, LLC; Newell Brands, Inc.; Frank Cammegh; Micro
6 Gaming Technologies, Inc.; Icahn Enterprise Holdings
7 L.P.; Icahn Capital L.P.; Beckton Corp - Beckton Corp;
8 Virginia E. Shanks; Crilly Court Trust; Emily Sadie
9 Rubenstein; Fund Indy, LLC; Grant Place Fund, LLC;
10 Howard Hamilton Ankin; James T. Borello and James T.
11 Borello Trust; Jeffrey Rubenstein; Kerry Lynn Denny;
12 Lakehurst (sic) Gaming G.P.; Michael Gus Pappas;
13 Sandra Kaye Borello and the Susan Rubenstein Family
14 Trust.

15 The OEC has no objection to any of
16 these Withdrawals and Surrenders, who, as a result if
17 the Board grants them, will be doing so without
18 prejudice to each of those parties.

19 CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Steve.

20 Any questions or comments from the
21 Board?

22 Hearing none, may I have a motion?

23 MR. MUSTIO: Mr. Chairman, I move that
24 the Board issue orders to approve the Withdrawals and
25 Surrenders as described by the OCC.

1 MS. REITZEL: Second.

2 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

3 AYES RESPOND

4 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

5 The motion's adopted.

6 ATTORNEY COOK: Next before the Board
7 for your consideration are seven Reports and
8 Recommendations received from the Office of Hearings
9 and Appeals (OHA). The evidentiary record for each of
10 these matters was advanced to the Board in advance of
11 this meeting, along with the Report and
12 Recommendation.

13 And additionally, each person that is
14 the subject of these Reports and Recommendations has
15 been advised that the Board will be taking their
16 matter up today and that they could come forward and
17 briefly address the Board.

18 If any of these parties are present
19 today and wish to address the Board, I'd ask them to
20 come forward when their matter is called.

21 The first Report and Recommendation
22 before the Board today pertains to Joseph DeSimone,
23 who I believe is present. I'd ask him to come forward
24 if he'd like to address the Board.

25 While he does that, I'll give you a

1 summary. On October 21st, 2018, the OEC filed a
2 petition to place Mr. DeSimone on the Involuntary
3 Exclusion List based upon allegations that he had ties
4 to organized crime, prior criminal convictions in both
5 Pennsylvania and New Jersey for drug trafficking.

6 He also was alleged of cashing out
7 another patron's vouchers at the Parx Casino and got
8 into a verbal altercation, abusing and threatening an
9 employee at SugarHouse.

10 A hearing in this matter was held on
11 August 6th, 2019. OEC appeared and presented
12 evidence, both video and documentary. Mr. DeSimone
13 did not appear at that hearing and thereafter a Report
14 and Recommendation was issued recommending placement
15 of Mr. DeSimone on the Involuntary Exclusion List.

16 Thereafter, on October 17th, 2019, Mr.
17 DeSimone filed Exceptions to that Report and
18 Recommendation and requested that the record be
19 reopened. The OHA then did reopen the record and
20 scheduled a second hearing for December 4th, 2019.

21 At the second hearing Mr. DeSimone
22 appeared and testified on his own behalf. During his
23 testimony he stated that he was not involved in
24 organized crime, that he did not verbally abuse an
25 employee at SugarHouse.

1 And with regards to the stolen credits
2 at the Parx Casino that was alleged against him, he
3 stated he did not realize the credits were left in the
4 machine by another patron and when he found that out
5 after the fact he made partial restitution.

6 Mr. DeSimone also brought a companion
7 with him, who testified as well as to the incidents at
8 the casinos, essentially corroborating or - or
9 supporting his statements.

10 Additionally, Mr. DeSimone, while
11 acknowledging some connection with organized crime
12 figures, also presented evidence of a second
13 individual named Joseph DeSimone who is a reputed
14 member of an organized crime family. Essentially Mr.
15 DeSimone, who is before you, argued that the second
16 individual - a second individual of the same name was
17 more closely tied to organized crime and the OEC was -
18 in essence confusing or combining the - the facts
19 relative to both of these individuals.

20 After hearing all of the evidence
21 presented, the Board's Hearing Officer found OEC's
22 evidence to be more credible and recommended that Mr.
23 DeSimone, in fact, be placed on the Board's
24 Involuntary Exclusion List. That is the
25 recommendation before the Board.

1 As I indicated, Mr. DeSimone is
2 present and would like to address the Board.

3 CHAIRMAN: Before you do, would you
4 please stand, Mr. DeSimone, to be sworn. Spell your
5 name for the court reporter.

6 MR. DESIMONE: My name is Joseph
7 DeSimone. It's capital J, O-S-E-P-H, capital D,
8 E, capital S, I-M-O-N-E.

9 ---

10 JOSEPH DESIMONE,
11 CALLED AS A WITNESS IN THE FOLLOWING PROCEEDING, AND
12 HAVING FIRST BEEN DULY SWORN, TESTIFIED AND SAID AS
13 FOLLOWS:

14 ---

15 MR. DESIMONE: Okay.

16 CHAIRMAN: Just before you proceed,
17 I'm going to give you five minutes.

18 MR. DESIMONE: Yes, sir.

19 I would like to possibly back this all
20 up to when my conviction in 1997 was a part of a
21 conspiracy case. And I think I paid my dues to
22 society by doing my time.

23 I was involved in - in - in a
24 conspiracy case for parties that may have been much
25 more deply - deeply involved and I just happened to be

1 a newcomer coming into the situation. And being part
2 of a - a conspiracy case, if I didn't abide by the
3 fact of pleading guilty to the - what their view was,
4 I would have never got the small time for four-and-a-
5 half years. I would have been doing 15 to 25 years.
6 That's number - number one in reference to that.

7 As far as the SugarHouse incident is
8 concerned, I was a high roller and I went into the
9 high-roller room to - to eat. The two parties - since
10 I had previously had worked for the City of
11 Philadelphia when I graduated from the university in
12 1975, and worked throughout the whole City of
13 Philadelphia, in - in - with juvenile delinquency gang
14 control, I'm very much aware of racism and - and what
15 that could possibly hinder as far as a problem and
16 echo throughout the - a situation.

17 So, at this particular eatery that was
18 in the high-roller room at SugarHouse, two parties
19 were removed for coercing on a level -. They weren't
20 paying attention to what was - people that were coming
21 in and not being part of the high - the high -
22 high-roller type of premium that was offered of eating
23 for nothing. They were sitting in this seat or took
24 up seats, rather, that was expected for myself to sit
25 down since the party that was in front of me had

1 mentioned that there's two people she was putting down
2 on her card. And I put my hand up for the cameras to
3 verify the fact.

4 When the - the seats were being
5 occupied, I stood there with a dish and food in my -
6 in my - in my possession. The individual came over to
7 me and stated, you, go sit over there. And I stated -
8 responded to that, you talk to people like this as an
9 employee? I'm - I'm a - a high roller in this
10 establishment. And then we went - went into words.
11 And that's all it was, was words.

12 As far as - as far as in reference to
13 the Parx Casino, I have an EIN number as a consultant.
14 And I happened to be speaking to Paul Greco the
15 General Manager of Parx Casino, while the - the
16 establishment was going - going through a renovation.
17 He had mentioned that he would have liked to have had
18 a pizzeria. I had stated there was a nice pizzeria in
19 Philadelphia, not under the Lombardi's name, under
20 Gennaro's Tomato Pie.

21 When I introduced Mr. - Mr. Michael G.
22 Marino to Paul Greco and his entourage, it was - it
23 was under Gennaro's Tomato Pie not Lombardi's.
24 Whatever transpired at their - their meeting was
25 beyond my - my - my understanding.

1 As far as in that situation where
2 Michael G. Marino came across - in this room to your
3 entourage of people and - and I guess maybe after the
4 appeal was lost in October, stating his - to get his
5 license approved to go into Parx Casino there was
6 paperwork that was involved in there of a Joe DeSimone
7 86 years old, former head of the Bonanno crime family,
8 who presently was incarcerated and presently - and not
9 presently, but I am not that Joe DeSimone.

10 I'm 67 years old, not 86 years old.
11 And that's in reference to Parx Casino, sir.

12 As far as receiving mail that has been
13 suggested on this paperwork that I didn't receive, it
14 was sent back to sender, I received all the mail in my
15 mailbox that was - is being sent. And I responded at
16 three - on three occasions of a possible contingency
17 on the case and it was granted. And it was the same
18 of the - the prosecuting type review.

19 CHAIRMAN: You have one minute to
20 finish, sir.

21 MR. DESIMONE: I - I complete my -
22 okay. End of story.

23 CHAIRMAN: Okay. Thank you very much.

24 MR. DESIMONE: Thank you.

25 CHAIRMAN: Any questions or comments

1 from the Board in this matter?

2 Hearing none, may I have a motion?

3 MS. REITZEL: Mr. Chairman, I move
4 that the Board adopt the Report and Recommendation
5 issued by the OHA regarding the placement of Joseph
6 DeSimone on the PGCB's Involuntary Exclusion List as
7 described by the OCC.

8 MR. SANTONI: Second.

9 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

10 AYES RESPOND

11 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

12 The motion is granted.

13 ATTORNEY COOK: The next Report and
14 Recommendation before the Board pertains to an
15 individual with the initials J.D. and the request to
16 be removed from the Voluntary Self-Exclusion List.

17 On July 31st, 2012, J.D. entered
18 Rivers Casino and requested to be placed on the Self-
19 Exclusion List. The Casino Compliance Representative
20 who placed J.D. on the list testified that he
21 conducted the mandatory interview, explained the
22 process of being placed on the list, the consequences
23 of the exclusion period options, as well as completed
24 all of the required paperwork.

25 Thereafter J.D. signed the

1 acknowledgement form selecting lifetime self-
2 exclusion.

3 On August 16th, 2019, J.D. filed a
4 request for removal from the Self-Exclusion List,
5 stating that he believed he was only on the list for
6 five years. The OEC filed an Answer objecting to that
7 request. A hearing was held on November 7th, 2019.
8 Enforcement Counsel appeared, presenting the testimony
9 and documentary evidence that I just described.

10 J.D. also appeared and testified,
11 specifically stating that he didn't know that a
12 lifetime self-exclusion choice actually meant
13 lifetime. He additionally stated that he had been
14 diagnosed with post-traumatic stress disorder, he's
15 been prescribed antidepressants and that he attributes
16 his continuing to gamble to taking those
17 antidepressants.

18 J.D. also stated that he had a friend
19 who suggested that - to him that he may be - it may be
20 wise for him to place himself on the list.

21 The Report and Recommendation
22 subsequently issued by the Hearing Officer found that
23 J.D. did not provide sufficient objective evidence to
24 show that there was a reason for remove - to have him
25 removed from the list and, therefore, recommends that

1 J.D. remain on the list. And that's the
2 recommendation before you.

3 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from
4 the Board?

5 Hearing none, is there a motion?

6 MR. SANTONI: Mr. Chairman, I move
7 that the Board adopt the Report and Recommendation
8 issued by the OHA regarding J.D.'s Petition for
9 Removal from the PGCB Voluntary Self-Exclusion List as
10 described by the OCC.

11 MS. SMYLER: Second.

12 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

13 AYES RESPOND

14 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

15 The motion's adopted.

16 ATTORNEY COOK: The next Report and
17 Recommendation pertains to a second request for
18 removal from the Voluntary Self-Exclusion List.
19 Pursuant to the findings and facts, a Report and
20 Recommendation issued in this matter on August 16th,
21 2016.

22 An individual with the initials N.C.
23 entered Hollywood Casino Penn National Race Course and
24 requested to be placed on the Self-Exclusion List.
25 The Casino Compliance Representative who placed N.C.

1 on the list testified that he conducted the mandatory
2 interview with N.C., explained the process of being
3 placed on the list and the consequences of the various
4 exclusion options. He thereafter filed and had N.C.
5 sign all of the appropriate paperwork.

6 N.C. acknowledged during the interview
7 that he had a gambling problem and after making that
8 acknowledgement signed the forms, selecting a lifetime
9 exclusion period.

10 On August 26th, 2019, N.C. filed a
11 request to be removed from the Voluntary Self-
12 Exclusion List. The OEC again filed an Answer
13 objecting to that request.

14 This triggered a hearing which was
15 held on November 21st, 2019. OEC appeared and
16 presented testimony and documentary evidence, as I
17 just described. N.C. appeared and testified on his
18 own behalf, stating that he placed himself on the list
19 because on the day in question he had lost money, was
20 angry and chose the lifetime self-exclusion option
21 because, again, he did not believe it actually meant
22 his lifetime.

23 He also indicated that he was
24 requesting removal because sports wagering is now
25 legal and he wished to participated in that endeavor.

1 Subsequently a Report and
2 Recommendation issued by the Hearing Officer
3 recommends that N.C. remain on the Self-Exclusion
4 List, having not presented evidence supporting his
5 removal from the list.

6 CHAIRMAN: Quick question.

7 How long has he been on the list?

8 ATTORNEY COOK: Three years.

9 CHAIRMAN: Thank you.

10 Any other questions or comments from
11 the Board?

12 Hearing none, may I have a motion?

13 MS. SMYLER: Mr. Chairman, I move that
14 the Board adopt the Report and Recommendation issued
15 by the OHA regarding N.C.'s Petition for Removal from
16 the PGCB Voluntary Self-Exclusion List as described by
17 the OCC.

18 MR. KERNODLE: Second.

19 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

20 AYES RESPOND

21 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

22 The motion's adopted.

23 ATTORNEY COOK: The next Report and
24 Recommendation before the Board is M.H.'s request for
25 removal from the Board's Voluntary Exclusion List.

1 As a result of this request, a hearing
2 was held before the Board's OHA on October 8th, 2019,
3 as, once again, Enforcement Counsel objected to the
4 request. At that hearing the OEC appeared offering
5 testimony and documentary evidence similar to the
6 prior two cases we've just discussed. M.H., although
7 he received proper notice of the hearing, failed to
8 attend it and so it was held in his absence.

9 The evidence presented showed that
10 M.H. placed himself on the Lifetime Self-Exclusion
11 List on June 7th, 2018. And there being no evidence
12 in the record to support his removal from the list,
13 hearing only from OEC, the Hearing Officer recommends
14 that he, in fact, remain on the list as well.

15 CHAIRMAN: Again, he or she has been
16 on for how long?

17 ATTORNEY COOK: Less than two years.

18 CHAIRMAN: Okay.

19 Any other questions or comments from
20 the Board?

21 Hearing none, may I have a motion?

22 MR. KERNODLE: Mr. Chairman, I move
23 that the Board adopt the Report and Recommendation
24 issued by the OHA regarding M.H.'s Petition for Removal
25 from the PGCB Involuntary Self-Exclusion List as

1 described by OCC.

2 MR. LOGAN: Second.

3 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

4 AYES RESPOND

5 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

6 The motion is adopted.

7 ATTORNEY COOK: The next Report and
8 Recommendation before the Board pertains to Jose
9 Collado.

10 In June of 2019 Mr. Collado submitted
11 an application seeking to renew his Gaming Employee
12 Occupation Permit to continue working as a Poker
13 Dealer at Wind Creek Bethlehem.

14 On August 28th, 2019, the OEC issued a
15 Notice of Recommendation of Denial of that Renewal
16 Application based upon criminal charges lodged against
17 Mr. Collado pertaining to his conduct while employed
18 at Wind Creek.

19 Subsequently the following day OEC
20 also filed a Complaint to revoke Mr. Collado's
21 presently-held Gaming Employee Occupation Permit for
22 the same reasons.

23 Mr. Collazo - Collado requested a
24 hearing. Both - both the Recommendation of Denial and
25 the Revocation Request were consolidated for that

1 hearing, which was held on October 31st, 2019. Mr.
2 Collado - Collado appeared at the hearing, however, he
3 did not present any evidence.

4 The evidence presented by OEC showed
5 that in July of 2019 it was determined that on several
6 occasions Mr. Collado would cap his gratuities.
7 Specifically when dealing Poker, when he would receive
8 a tip, he would take another chip from the flow, place
9 it on top of that chip and drop both of them into his
10 tip box. This cost the casino \$126.

11 Following the hearing and the - and
12 after hearing the evidence presented, the Hearing
13 Officer issued a Report and Recommendation,
14 recommending that Mr. Collado's Gaming Employee
15 Occupation Permit be revoked. And as a result of that
16 revocation, Mr. Collado's pending Gaming Employee
17 Occupation Permit Renewal Application would, as a
18 matter of course, be denied.

19 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from
20 the Board?

21 Hearing none, may I have a motion?

22 MR. LOGAN: Mr. Chairman, I move that
23 the Board adopt the Report and Recommendation issued
24 by the OHA regarding the revocation of Jose Collado's
25 Gaming Employee Occupation Permit and deny his Renewal

1 Application as described by the OCC.

2 MR. MUSTIO: Second.

3 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

4 AYES RESPOND

5 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

6 The motion's adopted.

7 ATTORNEY COOK: Daine - Daine Butler's
8 matter is the next Report and Recommendation before
9 the Board.

10 In June of 2019 Mr. Butler submitted a
11 Gaming Employee Occupation Permit Application, seeking
12 work as a Surveillance Agent at Harrah's Philadelphia
13 Casino. On September 24th, 2019, the OEC issued a
14 Notice of Recommendation of Denial based upon Mr.
15 Butler's criminal record.

16 Specifically in November of 2017 he
17 pled guilty to a DUI charge and in May of 2019 he pled
18 guilty to a firearm charge and possession of marijuana
19 charge.

20 A hearing in this matter was held on
21 December 5th, 2019. OEC appeared offering evidence of
22 those prior criminal convictions. Mr. Butler did not
23 attend that hearing, and as a result there was no
24 mitigating evidence put into the record and this
25 resulted in the Hearing Officer recommend that -

1 recommending that the application be denied.

2 CHAIRMAN: Any questions or comments
3 from the Board?

4 Hearing none, is there a motion?

5 MR. MUSTIO: Mr. Chairman, I move that
6 Board adopt the Report and Recommendation issued by
7 the OHA denying Daine Butler's application for a
8 Gaming Employee Occupation Permit as described by the
9 OCC.

10 MS. REITZEL: Second.

11 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

12 AYES RESPOND

13 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

14 The motion's adopted.

15 ATTORNEY COOK: The final Report and
16 Recommendation before the Board today pertains to
17 James Hawkins.

18 In June of 2019 Mr. Hawkins submitted
19 a Gaming Employee Occupation Permit Application
20 seeking work as a Security Officer at the SugarHouse
21 Casino.

22 On September 12th, 2019, the OEC
23 issued a Notice of Recommendation of Denial based upon
24 Mr. Hawkins' criminal history. Specifically during
25 his background investigation it was discovered that in

1 February of 1994 he was found guilty of firearm-
2 related charges. And six years later, in July of
3 2000, he was indicted and ultimately pled guilty to
4 one count of bank robbery.

5 A hearing in this matter was held on
6 December 3rd, 2019. OEC put into the record the
7 evidence of those prior convictions. Mr. Hawkins did
8 not appear. And as a result, based upon the evidence
9 presented, the Hearing Officer recommends that the
10 application be denied.

11 CHAIRMAN: Any questions or comments
12 from the Board?

13 Hearing none, is there a motion?

14 MS. REITZEL: Mr. Chairman, I move
15 that the Board adopt the Report and Recommendation
16 issued by the OHA denying James Hawkins' Application
17 for a Gaming Employee Occupation Permit as described
18 by the OCC.

19 MR. SANTONI: Second.

20 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

21 AYES RESPOND

22 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

23 The motion's adopted.

24 ATTORNEY COOK: And that concludes the
25 matters of the OCC.

1 CHAIRMAN: Thank you.

2 Sue Hensel, Bureau of Licensing.

3 MS. HENSEL: Thank you, Chairman
4 Barasch and members of the Board.

5 Before the Board today will be one
6 Interactive Gaming Manufacturer, a Video Gaming
7 Terminal Manufacturer, a VGT Operator, VGT Procurement
8 Agent and five VGT Establishments.

9 In addition, there will be 869
10 Principals and Key Gaming and Non-Gaming Employees.
11 And finally there will be consideration of
12 eight Gaming Service Provider Applicants.

13 First for your consideration is the
14 approval of an Interactive Gaming Manufacturer License
15 for NYX Digital Gaming USA, LLC. NYX Digital is a
16 Nevada-based company that provides interactive gaming
17 technology solutions to Interactive Gaming Certificate
18 holders. It was previously issued a Conditional
19 Manufacturer License.

20 The BIE has completed its
21 investigation and the Bureau of Licensing has provided
22 you with a Background Investigation and Suitability
23 Report. I have provided you with a Draft Order and
24 ask that the Board consider the Order to approve the
25 Interactive Gaming Manufacturer License of NYX Digital

1 Gaming USA, LLC.

2 ATTORNEY PITRE: Enforcement Counsel
3 has no objection.

4 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from
5 the Board?

6 Hearing none, may I have a motion?

7 MR. SANTONI: Mr. Chairman, I move
8 that the Board grant NYX Digital Gaming USA, LLC's
9 Interactive Gaming Manufacturer License as described
10 by the Bureau of Licensing.

11 MS. SMYLER: Second.

12 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

13 AYES RESPOND

14 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

15 The motion's adopted.

16 MS. HENSEL: Next is the VGT
17 Manufacturer License for M3 Technology Solutions, LLC.

18 M3 Technology Solutions is an
19 Oklahoma-based company that manufactures products used
20 in VGT operations. M3 Technology Solutions, LLC was
21 previously issued a Conditional Manufacturer License.

22 The BIE has completed its
23 investigation and the Bureau of Licensing has provided
24 you with the Background Investigation and Suitability
25 Report. I have provided you with a Draft Order and

1 ask that the Board consider the Order to approve a VGT
2 Manufacturer License for M3 Technology Solutions, LLC.

3 ATTORNEY PITRE: Enforcement Counsel
4 has no objection.

5 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from
6 the Board?

7 Hearing none, may I have a motion?

8 MS. SMYLER: Mr. Chairman, I move that
9 the Board grant M3 Technology Solutions, LLC Video
10 Gaming Terminal Manufacturer License as described by
11 the Bureau of Licensing.

12 MR. KERNODLE: Second.

13 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

14 AYES RESPOND

15 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

16 The motion's adopted.

17 MS. HENSEL: Also for your
18 consideration -.

19 ATTORNEY LANGAN: Excuse me. Excuse
20 me.

21 CHAIRMAN: Jennifer, did you have a
22 question?

23 ATTORNEY LANGAN: Yeah. I just have
24 one question.

25 CHAIRMAN: Oh, I'm sorry.

1 ATTORNEY LANGAN: When we look at
2 Manufacturers, do we look at what else they produce,
3 like different skills of games or -?

4 MS. HENSEL: I'm sorry, I can't hear
5 you.

6 ATTORNEY LANGAN: Sorry.

7 ATTORNEY PITRE: Yes. We do, ma'am.

8 ATTORNEY LANGAN: We do. Okay.

9 CHAIRMAN: No. Repeat the question -
10 I - because I don't believe -

11 MS. HENSEL: What was the question?

12 CHAIRMAN: - she heard it.

13 ATTORNEY LANGAN: When we look at
14 Manufacturers, do we look at whether they produce like
15 skills - skills of - games of skills? Sorry.

16 ATTORNEY PITRE: Yeah. We - we look
17 at what they produce and where it's distributed.

18 ATTORNEY LANGAN: Okay.

19 ATTORNEY PITRE: And - yes. And we
20 also - we do that for all of our establishments -

21 ATTORNEY LANGAN: Okay.

22 ATTORNEY PITRE: - with regard to
23 games of skill.

24 ATTORNEY LANGAN: As far as the games
25 of skill, if they're distributed in Pennsylvania?

1 ATTORNEY PITRE: Distributed in
2 Pennsylvania, if they have - if - if they have games
3 of skill at a location.

4 ATTORNEY LANGAN: Okay.

5 ATTORNEY PITRE: Those are all things
6 that we look at and ensure that - that they don't -
7 they don't - they don't exist or that they're not
8 distributed.

9 ATTORNEY LANGAN: Okay. Thank you.

10 CHAIRMAN: Thank you. I'm sorry about
11 that.

12 ATTORNEY LANGAN: That's okay. No
13 problem.

14 MS. HENSEL: Also for your
15 consideration is the Video Gaming Terminal Operator
16 License for Shah VGT Service, Inc., doing business as
17 Penn Games. A VGT operator owns, services and
18 maintains VGTs for placement and operation at truck-
19 stop establishments.

20 Shah VGT Services, Inc. was previously
21 issued a Conditional VGT Operator License. The BIE
22 has completed its investigation and the Bureau of
23 Licensing has provided you with a Background
24 Investigation and Suitability Report. I have provided
25 you with a Draft Order and ask that you consider the

1 Order to license Shah VGT Services, Inc.

2 ATTORNEY PITRE: Enforcement Counsel
3 has no objection.

4 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from
5 the Board?

6 Hearing none, is there a motion?

7 MR. KERNODLE: Mr. Chairman, I move
8 the Board grants Shah VGT Service, Inc., doing
9 business as Penn Games, a Video Gaming Terminal
10 Operator License as described by the Bureau of
11 Licensing.

12 MR. LOGAN: Second.

13 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

14 AYES RESPOND

15 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

16 The motion's adopted.

17 MS. HENSEL: Next is the license for
18 VGT Procurement Agent Applicant Philip Rolsma. Philip
19 Rolsma is based in Cranberry Township, Pennsylvania.
20 A Procurement Agent negotiates Terminal Placement
21 Agreements on behalf of a VGT terminal operator
22 replacement of VGTs in truck-stop establishments.

23 The BIE has completed its
24 investigation and the Bureau of Licensing has provided
25 you with the Background Investigation and Suitability

1 Report. I have provided you with a Draft Order and
2 ask that you consider the Order to license Philip
3 Rolsma as a Procurement Agent.

4 ATTORNEY PITRE: Enforcement Counsel
5 has no objection.

6 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from
7 the Board?

8 Hearing none, is there a motion?

9 MR. LOGAN: Mr. Chairman, I move that
10 the Board grant a Video Gaming Terminal Procurement
11 Agent License to Philip Rolsma as described by the
12 Bureau of Licensing.

13 MR. MUSTIO: Second.

14 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

15 AYES RESPOND

16 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

17 The motion's adopted.

18 MS. HENSEL: In addition we have
19 consideration of VGT establishments. VGT
20 establishments are truck stops seeking to place VGTs
21 in their businesses. Each of the companies was
22 previously conditionally licensed.

23 The BIE has now completed its
24 investigation, including an evaluation that the
25 companies meet the VGT establishment eligibility

1 criteria, and the Bureau of Licensing has provided you
2 with Background Investigation and Suitability Reports.

3 Once fully licensed, the
4 establishments can continue forward for completing the
5 steps necessary to commence VGT gaming. I have
6 provided you with Draft Orders to license the
7 following, CHR, Corp., doing business as
8 Rutter's-related entities, Rutter's Store 20, located
9 at 2800 Vine Street, Middletown and Rutter's Store 53,
10 located at 2215 Old Trail Road, Etters.

11 I ask that you consider a motion to
12 license these establishments.

13 ATTORNEY PITRE: Enforcement Counsel
14 has no objection.

15 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from
16 the Board?

17 Hearing none, is there a motion?

18 MR. MUSTIO: Mr. Chairman, I move that
19 the Board grant the Video Gaming Terminal
20 Establishment Licenses for CHR Corp, doing business as
21 Rutter's Store Number 20 and Store Number 53 as
22 described by the Bureau of Licensing.

23 MS. REITZEL: Second.

24 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

25 AYES RESPOND

1 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

2 The motion's adopted.

3 MS. HENSEL: Next is Fegley Oil
4 Company, Inc., doing business as Valero/Fegley Oil
5 Company/Fegley's Mini Mart, located 551 West Penn
6 Pike, Tamaqua.

7 I ask that the Board consider the
8 order to license this establishment.

9 ATTORNEY PITRE: Enforcement Counsel
10 has no objection.

11 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from
12 the Board?

13 Hearing none, is there a motion?

14 MS. REITZEL: Mr. Chairman, I move
15 that the Board grant the Video Gaming Terminal
16 Establishment License for Fegley Oil Company, Inc.
17 doing business as Valero Fegley Oil Co, Inc./Fegley's
18 Mini Mart as - as described by the Bureau of
19 Licensing.

20 MR. SANTONI: Second.

21 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

22 AYES RESPOND

23 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

24 The motion's adopted.

25 MS. HENSEL: Also for your

1 consideration are Conditional VGT Establishment
2 Licenses. The Applicants are Last Minit Mart, Inc. in
3 New Castle, doing business as Last Minit Mart, located
4 at 2985 New Butler Road, New Castle and Raji, Inc.
5 doing business as Trexler Plaza Truck Stop, located at
6 5829 Tilghman Street in Allentown.

7 The Board may conditionally license
8 establishments, provided the applicant has never been
9 convicted of a felony, is current on state taxes, has
10 submitted a completed application and has not been
11 convicted of a gambling-law violation. A preliminary
12 review of these Applicants indicates that they meet
13 these criteria.

14 Note that unlike the establishments
15 that were just fully licensed, these are strictly
16 conditional approvals. Final approval will be based
17 on the Applicants meeting all the eligibility criteria
18 provided in the statute. A final eligibility
19 determination will follow an investigation and site
20 inspections by the BIE.

21 I ask that the Board consider a motion
22 to approve the Conditional VGT Establishment Licenses.

23 ATTORNEY PITRE: Enforcement Counsel
24 has no objection.

25 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from

1 the Board?

2 Hearing none, may I have a motion?

3 MR. SANTONI: Mr. Chairman, I move
4 that the Board grant Conditional Video Gaming Terminal
5 Establishment Licenses to the Last Minit Mart, Inc.,
6 New Castle doing business as Last Minit Mart, Inc. -
7 Last Minit Mart and Raji, Inc., doing business as
8 Trexler Plaza Truck Stop as described by the Bureau of
9 Licensing.

10 MS. SMYLER: Second.

11 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

12 AYES RESPOND

13 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

14 The motion's adopted.

15 MS. HENSEL: Next for your approval
16 are one-year license extensions for conditionally-
17 licensed entities. These companies were each granted
18 one-year Conditional Licenses approximately one year
19 ago.

20 Under the Gaming Act and Board
21 Regulations, the Board is authorized to extend the
22 licenses for an additional one-year period for good
23 cause. In each case the Background Investigation and
24 Suitability Report processed for the company is
25 continuing.

1 I ask that the Board grant one-year
2 extensions to the following companies, Conditional
3 Gaming Operator-Betfair Interactive US, LLC and
4 Conditional VGT Supplier-H. Betti Industries, Inc. I
5 have provided you with Draft Orders and ask that you
6 consider a motion approving these Orders.

7 ATTORNEY PITRE: Enforcement Counsel
8 has no objection.

9 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from
10 the Board?

11 Hearing none, is there a motion?

12 MS. SMYLER: Yes. Mr. Chairman, I
13 move that the Board grant the extension of - for
14 Conditional Licenses as described by the Bureau of
15 Licensing.

16 MR. KERNODLE: Second.

17 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

18 AYES RESPOND

19 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

20 The motion's adopted.

21 MS. HENSEL: Next are Principal and
22 Key Employee Licenses for your consideration. Prior
23 to this meeting, the Bureau of Licensing provided you
24 with a Proposed Order for three principals and eight
25 key employees. I ask that the Board consider the

1 Order approving these licenses.

2 ATTORNEY PITRE: Enforcement Counsel
3 has no objection.

4 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from
5 the Board?

6 Hearing none, is there a motion?

7 MR. KERNODLE: Mr. Chairman, I move
8 the Board grants the Principal and Key Employee
9 Licensees as described by the - Bureau of Licensing.

10 MR. LOGAN: Second.

11 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

12 AYES RESPOND

13 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

14 The motion's adopted.

15 MS. HENSEL: There are also Temporary
16 Licenses. Prior to this meeting, the Bureau of
17 Licensing provided you with an Order regarding the
18 issuance of Temporary Licenses for two Principals and
19 26 Key Employees. I ask that the Board consider an
20 Order approving these licenses.

21 ATTORNEY PITRE: Enforcement Counsel
22 has no objection.

23 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from
24 the Board?

25 Hearing none, is there a motion?

1 MR. LOGAN: Mr. Chairman, I move that
2 the Board grant the Temporary Principal and Key
3 Employee Credentials as described by the Bureau of
4 Licensing.

5 MR. MUSTIO: Second.

6 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

7 AYES RESPOND

8 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

9 The motion's adopted.

10 MS. HENSEL: Next are Gaming Permits
11 and Non-Gaming Registrations. Prior to this meeting,
12 the Bureau of Licensing provided you with a list of
13 560 individuals to whom the Bureau of Licensing has
14 granted Temporary or Full Occupation Permits and 145
15 individuals to whom the Bureau has granted
16 Registrations. I asked that the Board consider a
17 motion approving the Orders.

18 ATTORNEY PITRE: Enforcement Counsel
19 has no objection.

20 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from
21 the Board?

22 Hearing none, is there a motion?

23 MR. MUSTIO: Mr. Chairman, I move that
24 the Board grant the Gaming Employee Occupation Permits
25 and Non-Gaming Employee Registrations as described by

1 the Bureau of Licensing.

2 MS. REITZEL: Second.

3 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

4 AYES RESPOND

5 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

6 The motion's adopted.

7 MS. HENSEL: There was also a

8 Recommendation of Denial for one Gaming Employee
9 Applicant.

10 Jacqueline McBride, was notified that
11 she was being recommended for denial and failed to
12 request a hearing within the specified time frame.
13 The Bureau of Licensing has provided you with an Order
14 addressing Jacqueline McBride, who the OEC has
15 recommended for denial. I ask that the Board consider
16 the Order approving this denial.

17 ATTORNEY PITRE: Enforcement Counsel
18 continues to request denial in this instance.

19 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from
20 the Board?

21 Hearing none, is there a motion?

22 MS. REITZEL: Mr. Chairman, I move
23 that the Board deny Jacqueline McBride's Application
24 for a Non-Gaming Employee Registration as described by
25 the Bureau of Licensing.

1 MR. SANTONI: Second.

2 CHAIRMAN: All in favor.

3 AYES RESPOND

4 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

5 The motion's adopted.

6 MS. HENSEL: The next matters for your
7 consideration are Withdrawal Requests. In each case
8 the License, Permit or Registration is no longer
9 required. For today's meeting I have provided the
10 Board with one Key, 87 Gaming and 37 Non-Gaming
11 Applicants. I ask that the Board consider the Order
12 approving the Withdrawals.

13 ATTORNEY PITRE: Enforcement Counsel
14 has no objection.

15 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from
16 the Board?

17 Hearing none, is there a motion?

18 MR. SANTONI: Mr. Chairman, I move
19 that the Board grant the Withdrawal of Scott Davies'
20 Key Employee Application and the Gaming and Non-Gaming
21 Employee Applications as described by the Bureau of
22 Licensing.

23 MS. SMYLER: Second.

24 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

25 AYES RESPOND

1 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

2 The motion's adopted.

3 MS. HENSEL: Finally for your
4 consideration are Gaming Service Provider
5 Registrations. The Bureau of Licensing provided you
6 with an Order and an attached list of eight Registered
7 Gaming Service Provider Applicants. I ask that the
8 Board consider the Order registering these Gaming
9 Service Providers.

10 ATTORNEY PITRE: Enforcement Counsel
11 has no objection.

12 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from
13 the Board?

14 Hearing none, is there a motion?

15 MS. SMYLER: Mr. Chairman, I move that
16 the Board approves the applications for Gaming Service
17 Providers Registration as described by the Bureau of
18 Licensing.

19 MR. KERNODLE: Second.

20 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

21 AYES RESPOND

22 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

23 The motion's adopted.

24 MS. HENSEL: That concludes the
25 matters of the Bureau of Licensing.

1 CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Sue.

2 OEC?

3 ATTORNEY PITRE: Hey. Today we will
4 provide - present nine matters to the Board's - to the
5 Board for its consideration, which consists of two
6 Revocations and seven Involuntary Exclusions. The
7 next two matters on the Agenda consist of enforcement
8 actions in which the OEC filed Complaints seeking the
9 revocation of a Non-Gaming Registration and a Gaming
10 Occupation Permit issued by the Board.

11 Complaints have been filed with the
12 Board's OHA and promptly served upon each - each -
13 each individual named in each Complaint. The
14 individual named in each Complaint failed to respond
15 within 30 days as required by Board Regulation. As a
16 result the OEC filed a Request for Default Judgment in
17 each instance and properly served the same upon each
18 respondent.

19 Therefore, the facts in each Complaint
20 are deemed admitted. All file documents have been
21 provided to the Board and the matters are presently
22 ripe for the Board's consideration. A brief summary
23 of the facts and the request for the appropriate Board
24 action will be provided by Assistant Enforcement
25 Counsel Ashley Gabrielle.

1 ATTORNEY GABRIELLE: Good afternoon
2 Mr. Chairman and Commissioners. Ashley Gabrielle,
3 G-A-B-R-I-E-L-L-E, Assistant Enforcement Counsel with
4 the OEC.

5 Next on the Agenda for the Board's
6 consideration is a Complaint seeking the revocation of
7 a Non-Gaming Employee Registration issued to Bobby
8 Sam. Mr. Sam unlawfully possessed, misused and stole
9 company funds in the course of his employment as a Bar
10 Porter in July of 2019, resulting in his termination
11 from Valley Forge Casino Result - Resort in King of
12 Prussia, PA.

13 At this time the OEC requests that the
14 Board revoke the Non-Gaming Employee Registration
15 issued to Bobby Sam.

16 CHAIRMAN: Any questions or comments
17 from the Board?

18 Hearing none, is there a motion?

19 MR. KERNODLE: Mr. Chairman, I move
20 that the Board approve the revocation of Bobby Sam's
21 Non-Gaming Employee Registration described by the OEC.

22 MR. LOGAN: Second.

23 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

24 AYES RESPOND

25 CHAIRMAN: All opposed? The motion's

1 adopted.

2 ATTORNEY GABRIELLE: Next on the
3 Agenda for the Board's consideration is a complaint
4 seeking the revocation of a Gaming Employee Permit
5 issued to Jonathan Kurtz.

6 Mr. Kurtz was previously employed as a
7 Security Officer at Valley Forge Casino Resort in King
8 of Prussia, PA. In December of 2019 Mr. Kurtz pled
9 guilty to materially false written statement,
10 purchase, deliver or transfer a firearm, which is a
11 third-degree felony offense.

12 At this time the OEC requests that the
13 Board revoke the Gaming Employee Permit issued to
14 Jonathan Kurtz.

15 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from
16 the Board?

17 Hearing none, is there a motion?

18 MR. LOGAN: Mr. Chairman, I move that
19 the Board approve the revocation of Jonathan Kurtz's
20 Gaming Employee Occupation Permit as described by the
21 OEC.

22 MR. MUSTIO: Second.

23 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

24 AYES RESPOND

25 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

1 The motion's adopted.

2 ATTORNEY PITRE: The remaining matters
3 on the Agenda consist of enforcement actions in which
4 the OEC filed petitions seeking the involuntary
5 exclusion of individuals whose presence in a licensed
6 facility are inimical to the interest of the
7 Commonwealth and their license gaming therein.

8 In each instance the Petition for
9 Exclusion has been filed with the Board's OHA and
10 promptly served upon the individual named in the
11 petition. The individual named in each petition
12 failed to respond within 30 days as required by Board
13 Regulation.

14 As a result the OEC filed a Request
15 for Default Judgment in each instance and properly
16 served the same upon each individual. Therefore, all
17 the facts in each petition are deemed admitted. All
18 filed documents have been provided to the Board and
19 the matters are presently ripe for the Board's
20 consideration.

21 In each instance if the Board orders a
22 proposed exclusion, each individuals' photo, personal
23 identifiers and a summary of the inimical conduct will
24 be placed on the Board's public website.

25 ATTORNEY GABRIELLE: Ashley Gabrielle,

1 G-A-B-R-I-E-L-L-E, Assistant Enforcement Counsel.

2 The next two matters on the Agenda for
3 the Board's consideration are petitions for the
4 exclusion of Matthew J. Druker, and Rebecca Druker.
5 As the exclusion request arise from the same set of
6 facts, I will provide the facts giving rise to the
7 requests and then separately request the exclusion of
8 each individual.

9 In March 2019 Matthew J. Druker, and
10 Rebecca Druker, left their approximately 12-month-old
11 baby unattended in their vehicle in the parking lot at
12 Valley Forge Casino Resort in King of Prussia while
13 they engaged in gaming activity.

14 Matthew J. Druker, and Rebecca Druker,
15 were charged with endangering welfare of children, a
16 felony offense of the second degree, recklessly
17 endangering another person, a misdemeanor of the
18 second degree and leaving child unattended in vehicle,
19 a summary offense.

20 Matthew J. Druker, was also charged
21 with two counts of intentional possession of a
22 controlled substance by a person not registered and
23 three counts of use/possession of drug paraphernalia,
24 both misdemeanors. The charges for Matthew J. Druker
25 and Rebecca Druker remain pending.

1 At this time the OEC requests that the
2 Board exclude Matthew J. Druker.

3 CHAIRMAN: Just a quick question.

4 How long was the child left in the car
5 before they either returned or somebody discovered
6 this?

7 ATTORNEY GABRIELLE: Approximately 30
8 minutes.

9 CHAIRMAN: Thank you.

10 MR. LOGAN: Mr. Chairman?

11 CHAIRMAN: Yes.

12 MR. LOGAN: Can I? Sarah - does the
13 Board have the ability to levy a fine against these
14 folks?

15 ATTORNEY PITRE: Unfortunately not.

16 MR. LOGAN: Can we levy a fee for your
17 time investigating it?

18 ATTORNEY PITRE: You know,
19 unfortunately not, because that time is already spread
20 out to the casinos -

21 MR. LOGAN: Got you.

22 ATTORNEY PITRE: - with - with regard
23 to that. The only - no. Well, I'm not going to get
24 into that.

25 MR. LOGAN: Okay. Okay.

1 ATTORNEY PITRE: No.

2 CHAIRMAN: Any other questions? If
3 there aren't, may I have a motion?

4 MR. MUSTIO: Mr. Chairman, I move that
5 the Board approve the admission of Matthew J. Druker
6 to the PGCB Involuntary Exclusion List as described by
7 the OEC.

8 MS. REITZEL: Second.

9 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

10 AYES RESPOND

11 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

12 The motion's adopted.

13 ATTORNEY GABRIELLE: And the OEC
14 requests that the Board exclude Rebecca Druker.

15 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from
16 the Board?

17 Hearing none, may I have a motion?

18 MS. REITZEL: I move that the Board
19 approve the addition of Rebecca Druker, to the PGCB
20 Involuntary Exclusion List as described by the OEC.

21 MR. SANTONI: Second.

22 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

23 AYES RESPOND

24 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

25 The motion's adopted.

1 ATTORNEY MONAGHAN: Good afternoon.

2 I'm Thomas Monaghan, M-O-N-A-G-H-A-N
3 with the OEC.

4 The next item on the Agenda for the
5 Board's consideration is a request to place Raymond
6 Murray on the Board's Involuntary Exclusion List.

7 On July 12th, 2019, Mr. Murray cheated
8 by past posting a wager at Harrah's Casino at a gain
9 of \$4,000. Mr. Murray was criminally charged for his
10 actions.

11 At this time OEC requests the Board
12 place Raymond Murray on the Board's Involuntary
13 Exclusion List.

14 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from
15 the Board?

16 Hearing none, is there a motion?

17 MR. SANTONI: Mr. Chairman, I move
18 that the Board approve the addition of Raymond Murray
19 to the PGCB Involuntary Exclusion List as described by
20 the OEC.

21 MS. SMYLER: Second.

22 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

23 AYES RESPOND

24 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

25 The motion's adopted.

1 ATTORNEY MONAGHAN: The next matter in
2 the Agenda for the Board's consideration is a request
3 to place Geraldine Pendleton on the Board's
4 Involuntary Exclusion List.

5 On March 16th, 2019, Ms. Pendleton
6 left her two grandchildren, ages five and three,
7 unattended in a hotel room while she gamed at Mohegan
8 Sun Casino. The children were left unattended for
9 approximately two hours.

10 At this time OEC requests the Board
11 place Geraldine Pendleton on the Board's Involuntary
12 Exclusion List.

13 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from
14 the Board?

15 Hearing none, is there a motion?

16 MS. SMYLER: Mr. Chairman, I move that
17 the Board approve the addition of Geraldine Pendleton
18 to the PGCB Involuntary Exclusion List as described by
19 the OEC.

20 MR. KERNODLE: Second.

21 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

22 AYES RESPOND

23 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

24 The motion's adopted.

25 ATTORNEY MILLER: Good afternoon.

1 Dustin Miller, on behalf of the OEC.

2 Next on the Agenda for the Board's
3 consideration is a request to place Abel Lamont Waters
4 on the Board's Involuntary Exclusion List.

5 In May of 2019 Mr. Waters stole 20
6 non-value roulette chips from a roulette game with -
7 while a patron at Rivers Casino Philadelphia and fled
8 the casino before he could be apprehended.

9 Accordingly the OEC requests that the
10 Board place Abel Lamont Waters on the Board's
11 Involuntary Exclusion List.

12 CHAIRMAN: Any questions or comments
13 from the Board?

14 May I have a motion?

15 MR. KERNODLE: Mr. Chairman, I move
16 that the Board approve the addition of Abel Lamont
17 Waters to the PGCB Involuntary Exclusion List
18 described by the OEC.

19 MR. LOGAN: Second.

20 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

21 AYES RESPOND

22 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

23 The motion's adopted.

24 ATTORNEY MCALLISTER: Good afternoon.

25 Bradley McAllister,

1 M-C-A-L-L-I-S-T-E-R, for the OEC.

2 The next matter on the Board's Agenda
3 for your consideration is a petition for placement of
4 Michelle Cedoz on the Board's Involuntary Exclusion
5 List.

6 On May 24th, 2019, Ms. Cedoz left her
7 five-year-old nephew unattended in a vehicle in the
8 parking lot of Presque Isle Downs and Casino for
9 approximately 15 minutes while she entered the casino
10 and gamed on the slot machines. As a result, Ms.
11 Cedoz was cited for leaving a child unattended in a
12 motor vehicle.

13 At this time the OEC requests that the
14 Board place Michelle Cedoz, on the Involuntary
15 Exclusion List.

16 CHAIRMAN: Any questions or comments
17 from the Board?

18 Hearing none, is there a motion?

19 MR. LOGAN: Mr. Chairman, I move that
20 the Board approve the addition of Michelle Cedoz, to
21 the PGCB Involuntary Exclusion List as described by
22 the OEC.

23 MR. MUSTIO: Second.

24 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

25 AYES RESPOND

1 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

2 The motion's adopted.

3 ATTORNEY MILLER: Dustin Miller, once
4 again on behalf of the OEC.

5 The final matter on the Agenda today
6 is a request to place Daron Chris Robinson, II on the
7 Involuntary Exclusion List.

8 While a patron of Parx Casino, Mr.
9 Robinson cheated while playing Blackjack on two
10 separate dates in August of 2019. Mr. Robinson was
11 criminally charged by the Pennsylvania State Police
12 and permanently evicted from Parx Casino.

13 At this time the OEC requests the
14 Board add Daron Chris Robinson, II to the Board's
15 Involuntary Exclusion List.

16 CHAIRMAN: Questions or comments from
17 the Board?

18 Hearing none, is there a motion?

19 MR. MUSTIO: Mr. Chairman, I move that
20 the Board approve the addition of Daron Chris
21 Robinson, II to the PGCB Involuntary Exclusion List as
22 described by the OEC.

23 MS. REITZEL: Second.

24 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

25 AYES RESPOND

1 CHAIRMAN: Opposed?

2 The motion's adopted.

3 ATTORNEY PITRE: Thank you. That
4 concludes our business.

5 CHAIRMAN: Thank you.

6 We have scheduled a public comment
7 period at this time. As I understand it, there is no
8 one here who wishes to speak today.

9 Is that correct?

10 Seeing no one here, we will then move
11 on. That concludes today's meeting. The next Public
12 Session will be held on Wednesday, April 1st at 10:00
13 a.m. in this room.

14 May I have a motion to adjourn the
15 meeting?

16 MS. REITZEL: So moved.

17 MR. SANTONI: Second.

18 CHAIRMAN: All in favor?

19 AYES RESPOND

20 CHAIRMAN: All opposed?

21 The motion is adopted and we are
22 adjourned. Thank you.

23 * * * * *

24 MEETING CONCLUDED AT 12:12 P.M.

25 * * * * *

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

CERTIFICATE

I hereby certify that the foregoing proceeding was reported by me on 03/11/2020 and that I, Derek Richmond, read this transcript, and that I attest that this transcript is a true and accurate record of the proceeding.

Dated the 21st day of April, 2020



Derek Richmond,
Court Reporter

ERRATA

PENNSYLVANIA GAMING CONTROL BOARD

MARCH 11, 2020 MEETING

Page 58, Line 10-12

SHOULD READ:

Board with one Key, 87 Gaming, 37 Non-Gaming, 3 Sports Wagering and 1 Video Gaming Terminal Applicants. I ask that the Board consider the Order approving the Withdrawals.